

Performance Management Advisors 8.0

Frontline Advisor

Manager User's Guide

The information contained herein is proprietary and confidential and cannot be disclosed or duplicated without the prior written consent of Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc.

Copyright © 2003–2010 Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc. All rights reserved.

About Genesys

Alcatel-Lucent's Genesys solutions feature leading software that manages customer interactions over phone, Web, and mobile devices. The Genesys software suite handles customer conversations across multiple channels and resources—self-service, assisted-service, and proactive outreach—fulfilling customer requests and optimizing customer care goals while efficiently using resources. Genesys software directs more than 100 million customer interactions every day for 4000 companies and government agencies in 80 countries. These companies and agencies leverage their entire organization, from the contact center to the back office, while dynamically engaging their customers. Go to www.genesyslab.com for more information.

Each product has its own documentation for online viewing at the Genesys Technical Support website or on the Documentation Library DVD, which is available from Genesys upon request. For more information, contact your sales representative.

Notice

Although reasonable effort is made to ensure that the information in this document is complete and accurate at the time of release, Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc., cannot assume responsibility for any existing errors. Changes and/or corrections to the information contained in this document may be incorporated in future versions.

Your Responsibility for Your System's Security

You are responsible for the security of your system. Product administration to prevent unauthorized use is your responsibility. Your system administrator should read all documents provided with this product to fully understand the features available that reduce your risk of incurring charges for unlicensed use of Genesys products.

Trademarks

Genesys, the Genesys logo, and T-Server are registered trademarks of Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc. All other trademarks and trade names referred to in this document are the property of other companies. The Crystal monospace font is used by permission of Software Renovation Corporation, www.SoftwareRenovation.com.

Technical Support from VARs

If you have purchased support from a value-added reseller (VAR), please contact the VAR for technical support.

Technical Support from Genesys

If you have purchased support directly from Genesys, please contact Genesys Technical Support at the regional numbers provided on page 9. For complete contact information and procedures, refer to the *Genesys Technical Support Guide*.

Ordering and Licensing Information

Complete information on ordering and licensing Genesys products can be found in the Genesys Licensing Guide.

Released by

Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc. www.genesyslab.com

Document Version: 80pma_us_fa-manager_11-2010_v8.0.001.02



Table of Contents

List of Procedures		5
Preface		7
	About Frontline Advisor	7
	Intended Audience	8
	Making Comments on This Document	8
	Contacting Genesys Technical Support	
	Document History	
	New in Document Version 8.0.001.02	
Chapter 1	Frontline Advisor	11
	Overview	11
	Manager Console	11
	Monitoring Hierarchy	
	How Frontline Advisor Monitors Agents	
	Thresholds, Rules and Metrics	13
	Thresholds	14
	Types of Threshold and Rule	
	The Team View	
	Agent Alerts	17
	Clearing Alerts by Saving a Note	
	Team Alerts	
	Printing the Current View	
	Opening a Defined URL	
	User Status Window	
	Customizing the Display	
	Choosing Metric Columns	
	Ordering the Metrics	
	Sorting the Views	
	Adjusting the Width of Columns	
	Resizing the Views	
	Searching	
	Persistent Settings	

Appendix A	Tailoring a Coaching Strategy	27
	Coaching Strategy Step 1	27
	Coaching Strategy Step 2	
	Coaching Strategy Step 3	
Appendix B	Sample Monitoring Hierachy	29
	Groupings	
	Monitors	
Supplements	Related Documentation Resources	
	Document Conventions	36
Index		39



List of Procedures

Choosing columns to display	/	24
-----------------------------	---	----

List of Procedures



Preface

Welcome to the Genesys *Performance Management Advisors 8.0 Frontline Advisor Manager User's Guide*. This document describes how to use the agent management features of Frontline Advisor to track, measure and optimize agent performance and build coaching strategies for performance improvement.

This document is valid only for the 8.0 release of this product.

Note: For versions of this document created for other releases of this product, visit the Genesys Technical Support website, or request the Documentation Library DVD, which you can order by e-mail from Genesys Order Management at <u>orderman@genesyslab.com</u>.

This preface contains the following sections:

- About Frontline Advisor, page 7
- Intended Audience, page 8
- Making Comments on This Document, page 8
- Contacting Genesys Technical Support, page 9
- Document History, page 9

For information about related resources and about the conventions that are used in this document, see the supplementary material starting on page 33.

About Frontline Advisor

Frontline Advisor improves both agent performance and customer satisfaction by giving agents, supervisors and managers a real-time view of agent activity. Customizable alerts draw immediate attention to agents who need coaching and enable supervisors to more effectively manage results and performance-related activity, good, or otherwise.

The real-time data enables supervisors to correct problems and reinforce progress as it happens, not after the break or during the next shift. Frontline Advisor puts everything supervisors and managers need to pay attention to in a single location, so they can capture the priority issues and quickly direct their attention to the agents who need coaching.

Current status, performance, behavioral or activity-based data can be presented in customized views. Sophisticated, configurable business rules monitor key performance indicators and then notify supervisors of situations requiring immediate attention.

The alert activity in Frontline Advisor and Agent Advisor makes agent activity trends more obvious, without requiring supervisors to be screen-watchers. It increases efficiency so supervisors have more time to spend with their agents.

Intended Audience

This document is primarily intended for managers and supervisors of contact center agents. It has been written with the assumption that you have a basic understanding of:

- Computer-telephony integration (CTI) concepts, processes, terminology, and applications
- Network design and operation
- Your own network configurations

Making Comments on This Document

If you especially like or dislike anything about this document, feel free to e-mail your comments to <u>Techpubs.webadmin@genesyslab.com</u>.

You can comment on what you regard as specific errors or omissions, and on the accuracy, organization, subject matter, or completeness of this document. Please limit your comments to the scope of this document only and to the way in which the information is presented. Contact your Genesys Account Representative or Genesys Technical Support if you have suggestions about the product itself.

When you send us comments, you grant Genesys a nonexclusive right to use or distribute your comments in any way it believes appropriate, without incurring any obligation to you.

Contacting Genesys Technical Support

If you have purchased support directly from Genesys, contact Genesys Technical Support at the following regional numbers:

Region	Telephone	E-Mail				
North and Latin America	+888-369-5555 (toll-free) +506-674-6767	<u>support@genesyslab.com</u>				
Europe, Middle East, and Africa	+44-(0)-1276-45-7002	<u>support@genesyslab.co.uk</u>				
Asia Pacific	+61-7-3368-6868	support@genesyslab.com.au				
Malaysia	1-800-814-472 (toll-free) +61-7-3368-6868	<u>support@genesyslab.com.au</u>				
India	000-800-100-7136 (toll-free) +91-(022)-3918-0537	support@genesyslab.com.au				
Japan	+81-3-6361-8950	<u>support@genesyslab.co.jp</u>				
Before contacting technical support, refer to the <i>Genesys Technical Support Guide</i> for complete contact information and procedures.						

Document History

New in Document Version 8.0.001.02

Minor textual corrections have been made in this release of the document.

Preface



Chapter

1

Frontline Advisor

This chapter describes how managers can use Frontline Advisor to view agent activity and alerts in real time and make appropriate responses. It contains the following sections:

- Overview, page 11
- Manager Console, page 11
- How Frontline Advisor Monitors Agents, page 13
- The Team View, page 16
- Customizing the Display, page 20

Overview

Frontline Advisor is designed to help supervisors and managers raise the performance of agents, allowing them to instantly identify activities that need correction or additional training, as well as areas where agents are performing optimally.

Manager Console

The Manager Console is divided into four panes:

- Monitoring Hierarchy view—Contains the groups and monitors in your monitoring hierarchy.
- Teams view—The agents' overall status activity in real time
- Agent Alerts view—The details of the alerts for a selected agent
- Team Alerts view—The details of the alerts for all agents on the selected team.

	ENES																		Change F		Frontline Advis	or
																			B COLUMNS	PRINT	OYNAMIC	\$
HIE	RARCHY	0	~													18 A	GENT ALERTS	Ja	ames Lewis	2		0
Name			Calls L	ng(AH	T Xfe	er Avg	Avg L	.ng\	logg	notF	read	talki	wra	hold	tota	Aler 🔻	Time	Alert	Detail	Note		
🔵 P. Eldr	redge		.8 68	59 563	165	25	505 6:	15	83	37	9	30	0	5	83	0	2008-06-05	Agent	t has no long wrap times.			
A. Na	air am-Anup_i	3 Nair-325 3		70 556 70 556			512 12 512 12			9	4 4	5 5	0 0	1	20 20	0	09:29:00.0 2008-06-05 08:09:00.0	Agent	t has no calls under the avg time.			
																0	2008-06-05 08:09:00.0		t is not transferring any calls.			
																0	2008-06-05 08:19:00.0	Agent	t has no long calls.			
																0	2008-06-05 08:19:00.0	Agent	t has no long wrap times.			
																0	2008-06-05 08:20:00.0	Agent	t is not transferring any calls.			
																0	2008-06-05 08:29:00.0	Agent	t has no long calls.			
																0	2008-06-05 08:29:00.0	Agent	t has no long wrap times.			
																0	2008-06-05 08:29:00.0	Agent	t is not transferring any calls.			
																0	2008-06-05 08:39:00.0	Agent	t has no long calls.			
																0	2008-06-05 08:39:00.0	Agent	t has no long wrap times.			
😕 TEA	ME						T		(A)						Q.]		EAM ALERTS	_	A V			0
Team-A			Logge	d: 20/2	0 Tall	king: 5	Alerts:	977		:41	Not Re	ady:	9	-) (h		LAPI ALEKIS		eam-Anup_Nair-325563		resh: 2008-06-05 11:09	-
Alert 🔻	Agent	State	Time				R-Cod		CallTyp			AH		Log-1	n	Alert	Agent	Time▼	Alert Detail		Note	-
0	Sharma	Not Rea	200:25	237	594	N/A	Projec	ct I	N/A	2		783		2008- 06-05 16:36 0.717	:2	0	B.Ponnachan	2008- 06-05 11:09: 00.0	Agent has no long wrap time	s.		
0	James L	Call Hel	226:25	239	897	N/A	Projec	ct I	N/A	3		376		2008- 06-05 16:10 0.717	:2	0	B.Ponnachan	2008- 06-05 11:09: 00.0	Agent is not transferring any	calls.		
0	Mark Ste		228:25		053		Corre			3		814		2008- 06-05 16:08 0.717		0	L.Alexander	2008- 06-05 11:09: 00.0	Agent is not transferring any	calls.		
0		Not Rea			593	N/A	N/A		N/A	2		596		2008- 06-05 16:37 0.717		0	D.Vasquez	2008- 06-05 11:09: 00.0	Agent is not transferring any	calls.		
0	Christop	Talking	204:25	237	652	N/A	N/A	1	N/A	6		390		2008- 06-05 16:32 0.717		0	R.Warren	2008- 06-05 11:09: 00.0	Agent is not transferring any	calls.		
0	Daniel H	Ready	221:25	239	852	N/A	N/A	1	N/A	2		434		2008- 06-05 16:15		0	A.Santos	2008- 06-05	Agent is not transferring any	calls.		

Figure 1: Manager Console

Monitoring Hierarchy

The Monitoring Hierarchy (see Figure 2 on page 13) contains the groups and monitors in your monitoring hierarchy, that is, the managers, supervisors, and teams who report to you as indicated in your monitoring hierarchy, plus your direct manager.

The Hierarchy view displays both primary teams as well as backup teams. The rolled up metric values for supervisors only come from the primary team and not from the backup teams. The backup teams are only present in the Monitoring Hierarchy view for display purposes.

The count of uncleared alerts (that is, triggered rules) roll up through all levels of the monitoring hierarchy.

Selecting Teams of Agents to Monitor

To monitor one or more teams of agents, select teams from the Hierarchy view.

To display primary and backup teams in the Teams view, select a supervisor. In the hierarchy view, the primary teams are represented by a yellow icon and the backup teams are represented by a blue icon.. The primary teams are displayed before the backup teams.

Note that only primary teams, not backup teams, contribute to the rolled up metric values of supervisors.

Name	Logged	Ready	Talking
J. Supervisor_Level46027 421405	1001	1001	0
J. Supervisor_Level36023 421405	1001	1001	0
J. Supervisor_Level26003 105300	250	250	0
J. Supervisor5003 4220	10	10	0
▶ 1 2100	5	5	0
> 2 2120	5	5	0
> 3 2100	5	5	0
* 4 2100	5	5	0
▼ J. Supervisor5004	C D	0	0
J. Supervisor5005 4200	10	10	0
▼ J. Supervisor5006	0	0	0
 J. Supervisor6007 4220 	10	10	0
 J. Supersisor5008 	0	0	0
J. Supervisor5009 4200	10	10	0
 J. Supervisor5010 	¢	0	0
▼ J. Supervisor5011 4200	10	10	0

Figure 2: Hierarchy View

How Frontline Advisor Monitors Agents

Thresholds, Rules and Metrics

Thresholds and rules are defined in the Administration Console by users with the admin role. Thresholds define the critical, warning, and acceptable conditions for each metric. Thresholds and rules can be used to find positive behavior as well.

Default values are provided on installation; however, they can be inherited or overridden. When modified at the global level, the values for all enabled teams and agents are automatically updated. For more information on inheritance, see "Sample Monitoring Hierachy" on page 29.

In addition to performance information, Frontline Advisor tracks and records all exceptions and allows supervisors to enter notes and coaching information to support positive and negative feedback. Supervisors describe their actions for dealing with the alert in a note. The note becomes part of the recorded history of the agent.

Thresholds

Depending on the metric, a value may be acceptable above or below a certain value. Some rules trigger an alert if the value is below or above defined values, as shown in Table 1 on page 14.

Table 1: Alert Thresholds

If value is	Value 1	And	Value 2	Result
greater than	the value in the 4th text box			then the value is critical high (red).
greater than	the value in the 3rd text box	and less than or equal to	the value in the 4th text box	then the value is warning high (yellow).
greater than or equal to	the value in the 2nd text box	and less than or equal to	the value in the 3rd text box	then the value is acceptable (no color is displayed).
greater than or equal to	the value in the 1st text box	and less than	the value in the 2nd text box	then the value is warning low (yellow).
less than	the value in the 1st text box			then the value is critical low (red).

The four text boxes are colored to provide a visual cue for the status (Figure 3). Red indicates a critical value range. Yellow indicates a warning value range. No color indicates an acceptable value range.



Figure 3: Threshold bar

Examples

The system setting for how often the metrics are calculated (that is, the performance calculation interval) is 10 minutes for the purposes of these examples.

Example 1 For an average of three-minute calls, handling two or more calls but less than or equal to five calls is acceptable. Handling one call but less than two calls is yellow. Handling less than one call is red. Handling more than five calls but

less than or equal to eight calls (that is, the calls are too short) is yellow. And handling more than eight calls (that is, short-calling) is red (Figure 4)



Figure 4: Threshold Acceptable Between Two Values

Example 2 In the example in Figure 5, handling two or more calls but less than or equal to fivecalls is acceptable. Handling one call triggers a warning (yellow). Handling less than one call or more than five calls is a critical (red).



Figure 5: Threshold Without a High Yellow Warning

Example 3 In the example in Figure 6, handling one or more calls but less than or equal to five calls is acceptable. Handling more than five calls but less than or equal to eight calls triggers a warning (yellow). Handling less than one call or more than eight calls is a critical (red).

NCH 1 1 5 8

Figure 6: Threshold Without a Low Yellow Warning

Rules

Rules are conditions that continuously monitor statistics. For example, an agent has more than 10 agent calls transferred in the past 10 minutes. Once a rule is triggered, an alert is generated. Alerts help to focus your attention on the most important issues affecting performance. Rules also count events throughout an interval of time, which allows them to trigger on the frequency of events. The frequency of an alert is a leading indicator of good or bad trends. It is good practice to learn to make use of alerts to quickly focus on where to take action now.

A threshold compares a measured value at a point in time to a threshold range to determine the status. Rules evaluate and trigger on agent metrics, but not for team metrics.

The thresholds and rules should be aimed at highlighting significant situations and be very purposeful. Ideally, the number of alerts should be low: one or two per agent per day would lead to very effective coaching. Rules could monitor only one or two types of situations a week. The rules could be changed to tighten the triggering numbers in a future week (to "raise the bar") or, once good performance is achieved, new rules could be defined to move to new areas of performance. See also, "Tailoring a Coaching Strategy" on page 27.

Types of Threshold and Rule

The five types of thresholds and rules are:

Table 2: Types of Threshold and Rule

Class	Explanation	Action
Threshold	Based on a count	Change text red or yellow
Threshold	Based on an average or maximum time value	Change text red or yellow
Threshold	Based on the duration of an agent's state	Change text red or yellow
Rule	Based on the frequency of calls held or calls transferred	Issue a red alert
Rule	Based on the frequency of (long or short) call durations or wrap times	Issue a red alert



Red indicates at least one critical alert.

Green indicates that no alerts are active: the value is normal.

In addition, a gray icon indicates the agent is not logged into the ACD.

The Team View

The Team view (Figure 7 on page 17) is where you can focus on your overall status in real time. Primary teams display before backup teams.

The state data is updated and refreshed by default every 10 seconds. The performance data is updated and refreshed by default every 10 minutes. The refresh rate is configured in the Administration module. Some default columns include:

- Alert—The agent's current alert state is indicated by a colored icon. In addition to red and green, a gray icon indicates the agent is not logged into the ACD.
- Agent—The first initial and last name
- State—The agent's current state, including:

- Not Monitored
- Monitored
- Logged On,
- On Hook
- Call Conferenced
- Call Dialing,
- Talking
- Call Internal
- Call Outbound,
- Call Held
- Call Initiated
- Call Unknown,
- Not Ready
- Off Hook
- Ready
- Logged Off
- After Call Work
- Agent Work Not Ready
- Time—The amount of time that the agent has been in the current state (minutes:seconds)
- R-Code—A code indicating the reason for the agent's most recent change of state
- Agent ID—The agent's identification. Select the team you want to monitor by clicking and selecting one (Figure 7).

TEAN	5		_		Sarret .		а,
Alert		Agent	State	Time	Agent ID	_	ću
0		3 AgentL0002	Ready	43 (50	[Resources] FAA	ent1d_10002	-
0		3 AgentL0001	Ready	49.00	[Resources] FAAgentId_1000;		-
0		3 AgentL0000	Ready	44(30	[Resources] FAAg	pentId_10000	-
0		J Agent10003	Ready	43:40	[Resources] FAAg	pentld_10003	-
•	_	81					
2				101414			_
Alert		Agent	State	Time	AgentID	Current Skill	R
0		3 AgentL0006	Ready	42 (10	[Recources] FAA	-	×1
0		3 AgentL0005	Ready	49.94	[Recources] FAA	-	= 1
0		3 AgentL0004	Ready	43(31	[Recources] FAA		#1
0		3 AgentL0007	Ready	43/4.0	[Resources] FAA	•	50
				-		_	

Figure 7: The Team View

Agent Alerts

The details of uncleared agent alerts are displayed in the Agent Alerts view (Figure 8). Display the alerts for an agent by selecting their name in the Team

view. The agent's name displays beside the Agent Alerts view. The visible alerts are those generated on the current day since 12:00 a.m. A procedure runs according to the Performance Calculation Interval set in the administration module by the admin user and moves violations that are older than 24 hours to a violations archive table. Hence at any given time the violations that appear in this panel are violations generated in the current day since 12:00 a.m.

The details of the Agent Alerts view include:

- Alert—The alert's status (red).
- Time—The time when the alert was triggered on the current day (hh:mm:ss).
- Alert Detail—The rule description.
- Note—A note for the alert from the supervisor.

- C8- A	GENT ALERTS	Sharma Amit	R	9
Aler v	Time	Alert Detail	Note	
0	2008-06-05 09:29:00.0	Agent is short calling.		•
0	2008-06-05 08:09:00.0	Agent has no long wrap times.		
0	2008-06-05 08:09:00.0	Agent is not transferring any calls.	Cancel Apply	
0	2008-06-05 08:19:00.0	Agent is short calling.		- 1
0	2008-06-05 08:19:00.0	Agent has no long calls.		- 1
0	2008-06-05 08:19:00.0	Agent has no long wrap times.		- 1
0	2008-06-05 08:20:00.0	Agent is not transferring any calls.		- 1
0	2008-06-05 08:29:00.0	Agent is short calling.		- 1
0	2008-06-05 08:29:00.0	Agent has no long calls.		- 1
0	2008-06-05 08:29:00.0	Agent is short wrapping.		_
0	2008-06-05 08:29:00.0	Agent has no long wrap times.		•

Figure 8: Agent Alerts

Clearing Alerts by Saving a Note

You can clear one or more alerts quickly and easily by applying notes on each alert. Once cleared, the note can be viewed in the Team Alerts view and becomes part of the agent's performance history. The alerts are cleared on a 24-hour rolling window. At any given time the alerts displayed are the alerts generated generated in the current day since 12:00 a.m. Alerts older than 24 hours are stored in the history. (A procedure runs according to the Performance Calculation Interval set by the admin user and moves violations that are older than 24 hours to the history in a violations archive table.) Although alerts older than 24 hours do not display in the Agent Alerts and Team Alerts views, those alerts and notes are in the database history.

Clear an alert by saving a note by clicking in the Notes field, typing text, and clicking Apply. You can only type one comment per alert. The alert icon is replaced by a green icon and the status is cleared. To save the notes to the database, click Apply.

Navigating away from the note without clicking AppLy will not clear the alert. If another supervisor saves a note as you are typing yours for the same rule violation, your notes will overwrite the other supervisor's notes.

Team Alerts

The details of alerts for all agents on the selected team are displayed in the Team Alerts view (Figure 9). The team's name displays beside the Team Alerts tab. The alerts are for the generated in the current day since 12:00 a.m and default to reverse chronological order. You cannot view alerts from arlier than the previous 24 hours; however, they are stored for the ability to do alert reporting in a future release.

The details of the Team Alerts view include:

- Alert—Your alert state is indicated by the color of the icon (red or yellow).
- Agent—Your first initial and last name if you have had any alerts in the previous 24 hours.
- Time—The time when the alert was triggered on the current day (hh:mm:ss).
- Alert Detail—Explanatory text describing what situation triggered the alert.
- Note—The text a supervisor provides for the alert

Update the list by clicking the Refresh button. The date and time of the last refresh display next to the Refresh button.

- (18) T	EAM ALERTS	Te	am-Anup_Nair-325563		9
			Last Refr	esh: 2008-06-05 11:19	2
Alert	Agent	Time ▼	Alert Detail	Note	
0	C.Ross	2008- 06-05 11:19: 00.0	Agent has no long calls.		Ì
0	L.Alexander	2008- 06-05 11:19: 00.0	Agent is not transferring any calls.		
0	D.Vasquez	2008- 06-05 11:19: 00.0	Agent is not transferring any calls.		
0	S.Amit	2008- 06-05 11:19: 00.0	Agent is not transferring any calls.		
0	A.Santos	2008- 06-05 11:19: 00.0	Agent is not transferring any calls.		
0	C.Henderson	2008- 06-05	Agent is not transferring any calls.		•

Figure 9: Team Alerts View

Printing the Current View

The report is generated as a PDF file. So, when you click the Print button on the dashboard the PDF file is generated. One of the following happens:

- 1. If your machine has a default PDF Viewer (like Acrobat Reader), the data will appear in the PDF Viewer. You can then save or print the document using the PDF Viewer.
- 2. If your machine does not have a default PDF Viewer, an Opening FA.pdf window will appear. You can then select to open the PDF document with a PDF Viewer application or save the PDF file on the disk.

Details of the printout include:

- The Hierarchy View section
- The Teams View section
- The Agent Alerts View section
- The Team Alerts View section

The PDF document will display all the data that is currently displayed on the dashboard. in separate sections mentioned above. The details of the printout do not include the values in columns that are not displayed on the Dashboard.

Opening a Defined URL

You can open a web site that the administrator has defined, by clicking the dynamic link button. This button has a ToolTip called Link Out.

User Status Window

You can display the User Status window to monitor the status of alerts while Frontline Advisor runs in the background. When a rule violation is triggered, the icon becomes red. You may want to keep the User Status button on your desktop, then if/when it changes color, open Frontline Advisor (Figure 1 on page 12) to see the details.

Customizing the Display

Choosing Metric Columns

You can select which of the optional state, performance and hierarchy metrics are displayed.

State Metrics The state metrics include:

CurrentState (state)

Voice Metrics

- LoginTime (LoginT)
- TimeInCurrentState (stateT)
- ReasonCode (rcode)

The following two state metrics work only when Frontline Adviosr is configured with a Cisco Adapter, and not with a Genesys Adapter:

- Call Type
- Current Skill

Performance– The performance metrics include:

- CallsHandled (nch)
 - CallsTransferred (nct)
 - LongestTalkTime (ltt)
 - LongestWrapTime (lacw)
 - AverageHandleTime (aht)
 - AverageTalkTime (att)
 - AverageWrapTime (aacw)

Performance-Web
Chat MetricsWeb chat metrics work only when Frontline Advisor is configured with a
Genesys Adapter.

Although they are available for selection from the Dashboard when Frontline Advisor is configured with a Cisco Adapter, they will *not* function in this configuration.

Web chat metrics include:

- ChatInProcess (wInProc)
- ChatAccepted (wAcpt)
- ChatRejected (wRjct)
- ChatPercentageRejected(wRjctPct)
- ChatTimedOut (wTO)
- ChatPercentageTimedOut (wTOPct)
- ChatTransferred (wTxfrs)
- ChatHandled (wH)
- ChatOffered(wOffered)
- ChatHandLeTime(wHT)
- ChatAverageHandLeTime(wAHT)

Performance-E-mail metrics work only when Frontline Advisor is configured with aE-mail MetricsGenesys Adapter.

Although they are available for selection from the Dashboard when Frontline Advisor is configured with a Cisco Adapter, they will *not* function in this configuration.

E-mail metrics include:

- EmailInProcess (eInProc)
- EmailAccepted (eAcpt)
- EmailRejected (eRjct)
- EmailPercentageRejected (eRjctPct)
- EmailTimedOut (eTO)
- EmailPercentageTimedOut (eTOPct)
- EmailTransferred (eTxfrs)
- EmailHandled (eH)
- EmailOffered (eOffered)
- EmailHandleTime (eHT)
- EmailAverageHandleTime (eAHT)

Hierarchy Metrics The hierarchy metrics include:

- Calls
- LngCall
- AHT
- Xfer
- AvgWrap
- AvgTalk
- LngWrap

- Logged
- Not Ready
- Ready
- Talking
- Wrap
- Hold
- Total
- ChatInProcess (wInProc)
- ChatAccepted (wAcpt)
- ChatRejected (wRjct)
- ChatPercentageRejected (wRjctPct)
- ChatTimedOut (wTO)
- ChatPercentageTimedOut (wTOPct)
- ChatTransferred (wTxfrs)
- ChatHandled (wH)
- ChatOffered (wOffered)
- ChatHandleTime (wHT)
- ChatAverageHandLeTime(wAHT)
- EmailInProcess (eInProc)
- EmailAccepted (eAcpt)
- EmailRejected (eRjct)
- EmailPercentageRejected (eRjctPct)
- EmailTimedOut (eTO)
- EmailPercentageTimedOut (eTOPct)
- EmailTransferred (eTxfrs)
- EmailHandled (eH)
- EmailOffered (eOffered)
- EmailHandleTime (eHT)
- EmailAverageHandleTime (eAHT)

Procedure: Choosing columns to display

Start of procedure

1. Click the Columns button. The column chooser is then displayed.

Hiorarchy Teans	
COLUMNS	
🖬 🗌 All Columns	
w 🔹 State	
M Barrie	
Lopped	=
Not Ready	
V Roady	
✓ Talking	
Whap	
Hold	
V Tatal	
🔻 🗹 Parformance - phone	
Cals	
🗹 LogCall	
AHT N	
V Sfer	
AvgWrap	
AvgTalk	

Figure 10: Column Configurator

2. For the selected columns to display for all teams, on the Teams tab, select the All Teams check box.

For the selected columns to display for only the current team, clear the ALL Teams check box and select a particular team.

3. Select check boxes.

Include all agent states or performance metrics by selecting the State or Performance check box.

Exclude agent states or performance metrics by clearing check boxes. Exclude all agent states or performance metrics by clearing the State or Performance check box.

- 4. Select the Hierarchy tab to select hierarchy metrics. Include all hierarchy metrics by selecting the ALL Columns check box..
- 5. Click Apply. The selected columns in the Hierarchy pane display in the Hierarchy view. The selected columns in the Teams pane display in the Teams view.

End of procedure

To close the Column Chooser without changing the columns, click CanceL.

Ordering the Metrics

You can change the order the metrics display by dragging a column heading to another location in the view. The default columns always display to the left of the optional columns. You cannot hide the default columns.

Sorting the Views

You can sort a view by clicking a column heading. You can sort the view in ascending or descending order. Sorting by the Alerts column is a great way to see all red alerts first. A sort triangle indicates the direction. The sorting persists if you either select another team or log out and back in.

Adjusting the Width of Columns

If one or more columns are selected to, or removed from, display, the width of the columns adjusts accordingly. There is a minimal default width. Adjust the width of individual columns, by dragging the pointer when it changes to a \Leftrightarrow near the column break.

Resizing the Views

You can resize the height of each view by dragging the splitter up or down.

Searching

You can search for:

- Supervisor and agent names in the Teams view.
- Alert details and notes in the Agent Alerts view.
- Agent name, alert details, and notes in the Team Alerts view

To search, type your search text in the Search field and click \leq . Searching finds the next occurrence of the search text from the current cursor location and highlights it.

To find the next occurrence, click \leq again. Search continues from the current location and wraps around the end to the beginning.

To clear the Search field, click 👞.

Persistent Settings

Logging out and in (to any machine) or returning from another module in the Genesys Advisors Browser retains the following:

- Column selection, sorting and widths
- Row expansions in the Hierarchy view

- Location of the splitters
- Selected team bar
- Selected agent
- Last selected tab (module)



Appendix

Tailoring a Coaching Strategy

This appendix describes how to tailor a coaching strategy. It contains three sections:

- Coaching Strategy Step 1, page 27
- Coaching Strategy Step 2, page 28
- Coaching Strategy Step 3, page 28

You can to use the concepts explained in this section to tailor a coaching strategy. A coaching strategy can be modified at any time. In general, coaching strategies will do the following:

- **1.** Set values according to types of groups.
- 2. Set values according to types of agents.
- 3. Provide a framework over time for continuous improvement.

Coaching Strategy Step 1

Consider our sample monitoring hierarchy (see the *Performance Management Advisor 8.0 Frontline Advisor System Administration Guide*) in which the very first level under Enterprise, groups the organization into Sales and Service.

In a case like this, the coaching strategy will set sales-oriented values at the Sales node and service-oriented values at the Services node. For example, agents who are selling are most likely expected to talk longer than agents who are delivering customer service.

This Step 1 approach continues throughout the monitoring hierarchy, using inheritance when situations are similar, and using overrides when situations are different.

For example, under the Sales group are Consumer and Business groups. These two groups are similar in some ways because the agents are selling, but they

are also different because one group sells to consumers and the other group sells to businesses.

Agents in both groups are selling and would probably be expected to perform the same number of holds and transfers. So the two groups would be set to inherit the hold and transfer thresholds from the Sales node. Wrap time for selling to consumers might take a shorter time than wrap time for businesses because the latter may include checking the balance in the business account. In this case, Consumer would have override values for Wrap Time different from the override values for Wrap Time in the Business group.

This Step 1 approach of setting values according to similarities and differences of groups continues all the way down the tree to the agents.

Coaching Strategy Step 2

In any given group, some agents will be new and some will be experienced. Step 2 uses inheritance and override values at the agent level to coach differently according to agent type.

For example, newer agents might be expected to talk a little longer than experienced agents, until the newer agents learn better call control, company policies, computer applications, and so on. Experienced agents know these things, so good coaching will challenge them with tighter override values to help them continue to improve

Step 2 uses inheritance and overrides at the per-agent level, enabling coaching by agent type.

Note: Sometimes Step 2 is required at the team level. For example, sometimes a "nest" is used to incubate new agents, while a "tiger team" is used to leverage the expertise of long-time, experienced agents. Step 2 would use inheritance and override at the team level in these cases, where teams are groups of agent types.

Coaching Strategy Step 3

Step 3 involves the improvement over time of Steps 1 and 2. Good coaching helps people get better over time by incremental improvements.

In Step 3 coaches tighten or loosen values over time to challenge agents and help them continually improve their performance.



Appendix

B

Sample Monitoring Hierachy

This appendix describes a sample monitoring hierarchy. It contains two sections:

- Groupings, page 29
- Monitors, page 30

The sample monitoring hierarchy has nine teams of nineteen agents in a five-level hierarchy (Figure 11 on page 30).

Groupings

Figure 11 on page 30 shows a hierarchy of groupings.



Figure 11: Sample Monitoring Hierarchy

The nodes labeled 19 Agents each represent a group of 19 real agents.

Monitors

Monitoring information defines which people can monitor which teams in Frontline Advisor. Figure 12 on page 31 displays the monitoring information combined with the group information.

The sample monitoring hierarchy defines one monitor (person) for each node in the tree: one person monitors the Phones node, one person monitors the Electronics node, one person monitors the Consumer node, and so on. One person (monitor) for each node in the tree.

The person with the last name Conway is a monitor of the Consumer node. This implies that Conway can monitor all of the teams in the Consumer subtree, which consist of the 19 agents on the Computers team, the 19 agents on the Phones team, and the 19 agents on the Publications team.



Figure 12: Monitoring Hierarchy



Supplements

Related Documentation Resources

The following resources provide additional information that is relevant to this software. Consult these additional resources as necessary.

Performance Management Advisors

- *Performance Management Advisors 8.0 Platform Deployment Guide* describes how to install and configure the Advisor Platform.
- *Performance Management Advisors 8.0 Frontline Advisor Deployment Guide* describes how to install and configure Frontline Advisor.
- *Performance Management Advisors 8.0 Cisco Adapter Deployment Guide* describes how to configure and install the Cisco Adapter.
- *Performance Management Advisors 8.0 Genesys Adapter Deployment Guide* describes how to configure and install the Genesys Adapter.
- Performance Management Advisors 8.0 Contact Center Advisor & Workforce Advisor Deployment Guide describes how to configure and install Contact Center Advisor Workforce Advisor.
- *Performance Management Advisors 8.0 Contact Center Advisor & Workforce Advisor Administrator User's Guide* describes how to configure your enterprise hierarchy and set up threshold rules/goals and users.
- *Performance Management Advisors 8.0 Contact Center Advisor User's Guide* describes how to personalize your display of information for monitoring and root cause analysis.
- *Performance Management Advisors 8.0 Workforce Advisor User's Guide* describes how to personalize your display of information for monitoring and root cause analysis.
- *Performance Management Advisors 8.0 Frontline Advisor Administrator User's Guide* describes how to perform administration functions for Frontline Advisor.
- *Performance Management Advisors 8.0 Frontline Advisor Manager User's Guide* describes how to perform manager functions for Frontline Advisor.

- *Performance Management Advisors 8.0 Frontline Advisor Agent Advisor User's Guide* describes how to perform agent functions for Frontline Advisor.
- *Performance Management Advisors 8.0 Alert Management User's Guide* describes how to manage the actions taken to resolve alerts and use the database to learn and repeat successes.
- *Performance Management Advisors 8.0 Resource Management User's Guide* describes how to maintain skill levels and agents.
- *Performance Management Advisors 8.0 Performance Monitor User's Guide* summarizes how to personalize your display of information for monitoring.
- *Performance Management Advisors 8.0 Workforce What-If Tool User's Guide* describes and gives examples of scenarios that illustrate how to adjust resource levels to achieve optimal outcomes.

Genesys

- *Genesys Technical Publications Glossary*, which ships on the Genesys Documentation Library DVD and which provides a comprehensive list of the Genesys and computer-telephony integration (CTI) terminology and acronyms used in this document.
- *Genesys Migration Guide*, which ships on the Genesys Documentation Library DVD, and which provides documented migration strategies for Genesys product releases. Contact Genesys Technical Support for more information.
- Release Notes and Product Advisories for this product, which are available on the Genesys Technical Support website at http://genesyslab.com/support.

Information about supported hardware and third-party software is available on the Genesys Technical Support website in the following documents:

- Genesys Supported Operating Environment Reference Manual
- Genesys Supported Media Interfaces Reference Manual

Consult these additional resources as necessary:

- *Genesys Hardware Sizing Guide*, which provides information about Genesys hardware sizing guidelines for Genesys releases.
- *Genesys Interoperability Guide*, which provides information on the compatibility of Genesys products with various Configuration Layer Environments; Interoperability of Reporting Templates and Solutions; and GPlus Adapters Interoperability.
- *Genesys Licensing Guide,* which introduces you to the concepts, terminology, and procedures relevant to the Genesys licensing system.

For additional system-wide planning tools and information, see the release-specific listings of System Level Documents on the Genesys Technical Support website, accessible from the <u>system level documents by release</u> tab in the Knowledge Base Browse Documents Section.

Genesys product documentation is available on the:

- Genesys Technical Support website at http://genesyslab.com/support.
- Genesys Documentation Library DVD, which you can order by e-mail from Genesys Order Management at <u>orderman@genesyslab.com</u>.

Document Conventions

This document uses certain stylistic and typographical conventions introduced here—that serve as shorthands for particular kinds of information.

Document Version Number

A version number appears at the bottom of the inside front cover of this document. Version numbers change as new information is added to this document. Here is a sample version number:

80fr_ref_06-2008_v8.0.001.00

You will need this number when you are talking with Genesys Technical Support about this product.

Screen Captures Used in This Document

Screen captures from the product graphical user interface (GUI), as used in this document, may sometimes contain minor spelling, capitalization, or grammatical errors. The text accompanying and explaining the screen captures corrects such errors *except* when such a correction would prevent you from installing, configuring, or successfully using the product. For example, if the name of an option contains a usage error, the name would be presented exactly as it appears in the product GUI; the error would not be corrected in any accompanying text.

Type Styles

Table 3 describes and illustrates the type conventions that are used in this document.

Table 3: Type Styles

Type Style	Used For	Examples
Italic	 Document titles Emphasis Definitions of (or first references to) unfamiliar terms Mathematical variables Also used to indicate placeholder text within code samples or commands, in the special case where angle brackets are a required part of the syntax (see the note about angle brackets on page 37). 	Please consult the <i>Genesys Migration</i> <i>Guide</i> for more information. Do <i>not</i> use this value for this option. A <i>customary and usual</i> practice is one that is widely accepted and used within a particular industry or profession. The formula, $x + 1 = 7$ where x stands for

Type Style	Used For	Examples
Monospace font	All programming identifiers and GUI elements. This convention includes:	Select the Show variables on screen check box.
(Looks like teletype or typewriter text)	 The <i>names</i> of directories, files, folders, configuration objects, paths, scripts, dialog boxes, options, fields, text and list boxes, operational modes, all buttons (including radio buttons), check boxes, commands, tabs, CTI events, and error messages. The values of options. Logical arguments and command syntax. Code samples. Also used for any text that users must manually enter during a configuration or installation procedure, or on a command line. 	In the Operand text box, enter your formula. Click OK to exit the Properties dialog box. T-Server distributes the error messages in EventError events. If you select true for the inbound-bsns-calls option, all established inbound calls on a local agent are considered business calls. Enter exit on the command line.
Square brackets ([])	A particular parameter or value that is optional within a logical argument, a command, or some programming syntax. That is, the presence of the parameter or value is not required to resolve the argument, command, or block of code. The user decides whether to include this optional information.	smcp_server -host [/flags]
Angle brackets (<>)	A placeholder for a value that the user must specify. This might be a DN or a port number specific to your enterprise. Note: In some cases, angle brackets are required characters in code syntax (for example, in XML schemas). In these cases, italic text is used for placeholder values.	smcp_server -host ⟨confighost⟩

Table 3: Type Styles (Continued)

Document Conventions



Index

Symbols

[] (square brackets).	÷	2	2	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	37
< > (angle brackets)	÷			÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	37

Α

adjusting column width			÷			25
agent alerts	 γ.					17
AHT						
alert thresholds	 					14
angle brackets						
audience, for document .						. 8
AverageHandleTime	 					21
AverageTalkTime	 					21
AverageWrapTime						21
AvgTalk	 γ.					22
AvgWrap				÷		22

В

brackets										
angle.		4					2			. 37
square.		÷					÷			. 37

С

Call Type	÷		÷		21
Calls					22
CallsHandled					21
CallsTransferred					21
ChatAccepted					
ChatAccepted (wAcpt)		2	2	2	22
ChatAccepted (wAcpt)					
ChatAverageHandleTime		2	2	2	22
ChatAverageHandleTime(wAHT.					
ChatAverageHandleTime(wAHT)		2	2	2	22
ChatAverageHandleTime(wAHT)					23
ChatHandled					22

D

document						
audience	 	4			2	. 8
conventions	 	4			2	. 36
errors, commenting on	 					. 8
version number	 				2	. 36

Ε

EmailAccepted						÷						22
EmailAccepted (eAcpt				÷								23
EmailAccepted (eAcpt).						2		2	2	2		22
EmailAccepted (eAcpt).					2	2			2	2		23
EmailAverageHandleTime EmailAverageHandleTime EmailAverageHandleTime)					2		2	2	2		22
EmailAverageHandleTime) (e.	A	H.	Т							23
EmailAverageHandleTime) (e	A	H	T)					.2	22.	23
EmailHandled	`				ć							22
EmailHandled (eH			2	2	-		-	1		1	1	23
EmailHandled (eH).												22
EmailHandled (eH).												
EmailHandleTime			1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	22
EmailHandleTime EmailHandleTime (eHT .			1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	23
EmailHandleTime (eHT)			1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	22
EmailHandleTime (eHT). EmailHandleTime (eHT).			1	1	1	1	1	1	1	2	1	22
Emailinandie finie (efff).			1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	20
EmailInProcess.			1	1	2	1	1	1	1	2	1	22
EmailInProcess (eInProc)		۰.	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	٠,		20
EmailOffered		•	۰.	1	1	1	1	1	1	• 4	۷۷,	20
EmailOffered		•	•	1	2	2	1	1	1	1	1	22
EmailOllered (eOllered			1	t,	1	1	1	2	1	٠,		23
EmailOffered (eOffered) .		•	•	÷,	÷	÷	÷	1	÷	-4	22,	23
EmailPercentageRejected												
EmailPercentageRejected									÷	÷		23
EmailPercentageRejectec									÷	÷	÷	22
EmailPercentageRejected	1 (e	Rj	C	tΡ	ct)	÷	÷	÷	÷	23
EmailPercentageTimedOu EmailPercentageTimedOu	Jt	÷	•	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷		22
EmailPercentageTimedOu	Jt	(€	эT	C	P	ct		÷	÷	÷		23
EmailPercentageTimedOu	Jt	(€	эT	C)P	'ct)	÷		÷	÷	22
EmailPercentageTimedOu											÷	23
EmailRejected												22
EmailRejected (eRjct						÷						23
EmailRejected (eRjct)												22
EmailRejected (eRjct)					2	2				2		23
EmailTimedOut					2	2				2		22
EmailTimedOut (eTO						2		2		2		23
EmailTimedOut (eTO EmailTimedOut (eTO) EmailTimedOut (eTO)												22
EmailTimedOut (eTO)					2							23
EmailTransferred					÷							22
EmailTransferred (eTxfrs.											÷	
EmailTransferred (eTxfrs)											2	22
EmailTransferred (eTxfrs)			Ì.	Ĵ.	Ĵ.	2	Ĵ	Ĵ	2	Ĵ	÷.	23
			÷	÷.,	- T.			- T.		- T.		

F

font styles																
italic			÷							÷	÷					36
monospace	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷		÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	37

Н

hierarchy me	ətr	ic	s.							1			22
AHT													
AvgTalk .													
AvgWrap													
Calls.													
Hold													
LngCall .		2		2	2				2		2	÷	22
LngWrap													
Logged .													
Not Ready													
Ready.													
Talking .													
Total													
Wrap													
Xfer													
Hold													

I

intended audience								. 8	3
italics								.36	3

L

LngCall	2
LngWrap	
Logged	3
LoginTime	1
LongestTalkTime	1
LongestWrapTime	

Μ

manager console								. 11
metrics								
monospace font .								.37

Ν

Not Ready				÷			÷												.23
-----------	--	--	--	---	--	--	---	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	-----

0

opening				÷														÷		.2	0
---------	--	--	--	---	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	---	--	----	---

opening URL	
URL	0
ordering metrics	5

Ρ

performance metrics				÷	÷			21
persistent settings .			÷	÷	÷	÷		25
printing								20

R

Ready	۰.						÷				23
ReasonCode	۰.								÷		21
refresh rate	۰.										16
resizing views .	۰.								÷		25
rules					÷			13	, 1	15,	16

S

sorting views																
square brackets																
state metrics	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	20

Т

Talking	3
eam performance)
eam view)
heshold bar	ŀ
hesholds	
TimeInCurrentState 21	
Total	3
ype styles	
conventions	
italic	5
monospace	1
ypes	
ypographical styles	5

U

User Status button	÷			÷	÷				20

V

version numbering, document	36

W

Wrap			÷					÷				23

Χ

Xfer	Xfer		÷																				.22	
------	------	--	---	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	-----	--

Index